

Minutes of a meeting of the Health and Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on Thursday, 7 June 2018 in Committee Room 1 - City Hall, Bradford

Commenced 4.35 pm Concluded 5.20 pm

Present - Councillors

CONSERVATIVE	LABOUR	LIBERAL DEMOCRAT
Hargreaves Riaz	V Greenwood A Ahmed Johnson Mir Shabbir	N Pollard

Observers: Councillor Nazam Azam and Councillor Rizwana Jamil

Apologies: Councillor Khadim Hussain

Councillor V Greenwood in the Chair

1. DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

No disclosures of interest in matters under consideration were received.

2. MINUTES

Resolved -

That the minutes of the meetings held on 22 March and 12 April 2018 be signed as a correct record.

3. INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS

There were no appeals submitted by the public to review decisions to restrict documents.

4. REFERRALS TO THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

There were no referrals made to the Committee.

5. CO-OPTION OF MEMBERS TO THE HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Under Article 6 of Part 2 of the Constitution the Committee may make a recommendation to Council for the co-option of non-voting members to the Committee.

The Committee was asked to recommend the appointment of the following non-voting co-opted members:

Susan Crowe – Strategic Disability Partnership
Trevor Ramsay – Strategic Disability Partnership
G Sam Samociuk – former Mental Health Nursing Lecturer

Resolved -

That it be recommended to Council that the following non-voting co-opted members be appointed to the Health and Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the 2018/2019 Municipal Year:

Susan Crowe – Strategic Disability Partnership Trevor Ramsay – Strategic Disability Partnership G Sam Samociuk – former Mental Health Nursing Lecturer

ACTION: Interim City Solicitor

6. PUBLIC HEALTH 0-19 CHILDREN'S SERVICE

The report of the Director of Public Health (**Document "A"**) provided an update on the intention of the Department of Health and Wellbeing to procure a Public Health 0-19 Children's Service (currently Health Visiting, School Nursing and Oral Health services) with the development of a new service specification and to procure the service through a competitive tender process. The procured Public Health 0-19 Children's Service will be integrated and co-located as part of the wider Prevention and Early Help model, across the four locality footprint.

The report provided compliance with Council Contract Standing Orders (CSOs) 2017/18 through which the Authorised Officer must, before inviting tenders or quotations for contracts with a total estimated contract value in excess of £2m, report details to the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

The Commissioning Team Manager provided an overview of the information contained in Document "A", during which she highlighted that the changes to the Public Health 0-19 Children's Service had been included in the Prevention and Early Help model which had been approved by Executive on 3 April 2018; three events had been held with the market; following feedback from the market a contract length of four years (with an optional extension of 2 x 1 year period) had





been determined; and the intention was to go out to tender in July 2018.

The Chair stated that she was aware of a pending national campaign which had been brought to the attention of MPs in the District in relation to women with post natal depression, in order to tackle the stigma around the subject. She queried whether officers were aware of it. In response it was stated that the CCGs were aware and doing more to tackle it was a strategic goal for them. Members were also informed that, in addition to the five mandated health checks, there would be an additional three to four month contact for maternal mood assessment.

A Member asked whether it would be possible to avidly seek local contractors before widening the search nationally. In response, it was stated that the tender would be open to everyone, however there had been a lot of local interest as well as high interest from the community and voluntary sector and although they would not be able bid for the full contract due to its size, there was an opportunity to work with other smaller bidders to submit a joint bid. Members were also informed that there was a new Social Value Policy that would account for 10% of the overall scoring. The Scrutiny Lead officer stated that she would circulate a briefing note to Members regarding the Social Value Act.

Members were informed that the main risk identified was that if a suitable provider was not found the current contract would be out of provision, however, this was deemed highly unlikely given the level of interest in the contract so far.

A discussion took place about the exchange of digital information and Members were informed that NHS Digital were commissioning a piece of work to enable the exchange of information across a number of systems. SystmOne was currently the GP preferred system and bidders would need to demonstrate how they would exchange information with that system, in real time as much as possible, whether it be with the use of SystmOne or another compatible system.

A Member raised concern that only the Toller, Bradford Moor and Little Horton wards were cited in Appendix 1 to Document "A" in relation to higher than national averages for tooth decay in five year olds. He stated that a recent report had also included the Bowling and Barkerend and Tong wards and he queried whether they would also be included. In response, the Commissioning Team Manager assured Members that as part of the oral health improvement programme, the service would constantly be reacting to the areas of greatest need and the information would be updated.

A Member stated that the language used in the 'summary of key findings for consultation on Health Visiting Services' within Appendix 1 was very subjective and he questioned the need to make changes to the service and what lessons had been learned from contracts that had been given to other external providers. In response, whilst acknowledging that the information from the findings via the service were not great, the primary focus was to consider the evidence base. Members were also informed that there was a legal requirement to re-commission the service and that the re-design was part of the wider changes which would see staff efficiencies. Two large contracts had been commissioned in relation to





Sexual Health and Substance Misuse and the performance outcomes had been good in relation to Sexual Health; the Substance Misuse contract was fairly new and there was no data on it as yet but officers were working very closely with the contractor and had found them to be very responsive.

Members were informed that although the Family Nurse Partnership service had ceased, some parts of the provision were still continuing through Better Start Bradford. Staff from the service had been retained.

Resolved -

- (1) That the Committee notes that the Public Health 0-19 Children's Service, namely Health Visiting, School Nursing and Oral Health, will proceed with the development of a new service specification.
- (2) That the Committee notes that procurement will commence with an indicative timeline of tender issue in July/August 2018 through a competitive tender process and a new service in place by mid year 2019.
- (3) That a report on the 0-19 Children's Service be submitted to the Committee during the 2019/2020 Municipal Year.

ACTION: Director of Public Health

7. WEST YORKSHIRE JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Previous reference: Minute 36 (2015/16)

At its meeting of 29 October 2015 the Committee considered a report of the Chair and resolved 'That the West Yorkshire Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny be supported'. It also nominated two members from within its membership to sit on the Joint Committee. As the Committee had since been reconstituted, there was now a need to appoint two new members to sit on the Joint Committee.

Resolved -

That Councillors Greenwood and Riaz be nominated to sit on the West Yorkshire Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

ACTION: Overview and Scrutiny Lead





8. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

Resolved -

That Members note the following dates for the 2018/2019 Municipal Year for meetings of this Committee scheduled to take place at 4.30pm in Committee Room 1, City Hall, Bradford:

Thursday 12 July
Thursday 6 September
Thursday 4 October
Thursday 25 October
Thursday 22 November
Thursday 6 December
Thursday 24 January 2019
Wednesday 20 February
Thursday 21 March

NO ACTION

Chair

Note: These minutes are subject to approval as a correct record at the next meeting of the Health and Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

THESE MINUTES HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER



